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Agenda Item 19 

 

 

Date: February 6, 2018  
 
To: Honorable Mayor & Members of the City Council 
 
From: Fire Department 
 
Presentation By: Pete Daley. Fire Chief 

 

 
Summary 
 
Subject: Purchase of Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA’s), masks, air 

cylinders, and related charging and maintenance equipment.  
 
Recommendation: A.  Approve the purchase of 58 SCBA’s from MSA in the amount of 

$367,500 with the finding that it’s in the best interest of the City. 

 B.  Authorize the Finance Director to complete a supplemental 
appropriation for Account No. 2310-63404 and transfer cash from Fund 
620, the Vehicle Replacement Fund, in the amount of $362,351.63 to 
purchase Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBAs), masks, air 
cylinders, and related charging and maintenance equipment.  

 C. Authorize the Finance Director to complete a supplemental 
appropriation for Account No. 2310-63404 and transfer cash from Fund 
620, Vehicle Replacement Fund, in the amount of $5,148.37 to 
purchase SCBA mounting equipment from Golden State Emergency 
Vehicle Service. 

 
Fiscal Impact: $367,500.00 – SCBA Account No.2310-63404  

 

 
Purpose:  

To replace 58 Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA’s) and 134 air cylinders that are to 
expire in April 2018. 
 
Background:  

The Fire Department’s SCBAs, purchased in 2003 through an Assistance to Firefighters Grant, 
will reach the end of their useful service life on April 13, 2018.  SCBAs are essential safety 
equipment that allow firefighters to enter and work within environments that are immediately 
dangerous to life or health (IDLH), and SCBAs are required to conduct rescue, firefighting, and 
hazardous materials mitigation operations.  Federal and State Occupational Safety and Health 
Agencies (OSHA) strictly mandate SCBA use and the Fire Department must comply with these 
regulations.  Staff submitted a request for funding in the 2017-2018 FY Budget and was advised 
to apply for grant funding and if unsuccessful to come back to the City for a supplemental 



 

 

appropriation. Due to grant delays within the Department of Homeland Security, staff is unable to 
apply for and secure grant funding prior to the April 2018 expiration date on the current SCBA’s. 
 
Analysis:  

The United States Department of Labor, Occupational Safety and Health Standards require that 
the City provide firefighters with personal protective equipment to include respiratory protection 
(Standards – 29 CFR 1910.134).  California Occupational Safety and Health Administration (Cal 
OSHA) standards augment those developed by Federal OSHA.  Cal OSHA Title 8 Regulations 
mandate respiratory protection using SCBAs.  Additionally, the National Fire Protection 
Association (NFPA) sets technical standards for SCBAs.  NFPA Standards ensure that current 
respiratory protection and safety technology is incorporated into an important component of 
firefighter personal protective equipment (PPE).   

In anticipation of the SCBA replacement, the Fire Department sent a formal Request for 
Information (RFI) to six SCBA manufacturers asking that they meet with the Fire Department 
SCBA Committee to answer questions and give a formal presentation of their SCBA and related 
products.  Invitations were sent to MSA, Scott Safety, Delta Air, Interspiro, Drager, and Honeywell.   
Only two manufacturers, MSA & Scott Safety, met with the committee and gave their formal 
presentations out of the six contacted.  MSA & Scott Safety both left six of their SCBAs with the 
Committee for field-testing by our personnel.   

At the conclusion of the pre-bid evaluation, Request for Quotations (RFQ) were sent to the two 
vendors (Scott Safety and MSA), who we felt were best positioned to provide SCBA equipment 
to the Department and to meet our timeline needs.  Staff also conducted a comprehensive 
evaluation of the two (2) manufacturer’s products in regards to price, maintenance, warranty, ease 
of use and care, battery costs, and ergonomic comfort. The MSA SCBAs were rated as the most 
suitable for the Fire Department through a series of objective tests.  

To maintain firefighter safety and standardization, all of the equipment needs to be replaced by 
the end of April 2018.  Each firefighter is issued a mask that is uniquely sized and fitted to their 
face.  This facemask is a part of the Department-issued PPE and each mask must fit with the 
harness assembly.  The facemask is not universal and must be paired with the appropriate SCBA.  
 
The following quotes (YCFD 18-01) were submitted by MSA and Scott Safety. 

             Vendor Price 
             MSA $362,351.63 
             Scott Safety $347,434.02  

After reviewing the above mentioned bids, and evaluation criteria, as well as operating costs not 
identified in the Scott Safety bid, Fire Department staff is recommending that MSA be selected to 
provide SCBA-related equipment.  This recommendation is based upon their ability to meet our 
timeline for replacing the existing SCBAs and air cylinders, their product’s safety features, 
additional features/components that can be activated in the future are built into the system, 
warranty, and MSA’s commitment to provide the Department with five (5) free rechargeable 
lithium ion batteries each year of the equipment’s 15-year life, or 75 batteries with a value of 
$15,750.  We recommend that the MSA quote be selected as being in the best interest of the City.  
  
 
 
 



 

Fiscal Impact: 

$367,500.00 – $362,351.63 for the purchase of MSA G1 SCBA packs and masks, air cylinders, 
and related charging and maintenance and repair equipment and $5,148.37 for SCBA mounting 
equipment - Golden State Emergency Vehicle Service. SCBA Account No. 2310-63404. 
 
 
Alternatives: 

1) Reject MSA bid 
2) Request new bid process within the time constraints of the April 2018 Out of Service date  

and a 42-90 day delivery time for the new equipment. 
 
Recommendation: 

A. Approve the purchase of 58 SCBAs from MSA in the amount of $367,500 with the finding 
that it’s in the best interest of the City. 

B. Authorize the Finance Director to complete a supplemental appropriation for Account No. 
2310-63404 and transfer cash from Fund 620, the Vehicle Replacement Fund, in the 
amount of $362,351.63 to purchase Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBAs), 
masks, air cylinders, and related charging and maintenance equipment. 

C. Authorize the Finance Director to complete a supplemental appropriation for Account No. 
2310-63404 and transfer cash from Fund 620, Vehicle Replacement Fund, in the amount 
of $5,148.37 to purchase SCBA mounting equipment from Golden State Emergency 
Vehicle Service. 

Attachments: 

A. RFQ# - YCFD 18-01 

B. Comparison of SCBA Pricing 

C. Comparison of Recent MSA Pricing 
 

 
Prepared By:    Submitted By: 
 
 

/s/ William E. Fuller   /s/ Steven C. Kroeger 

William E. Fuller    Steven C. Kroeger 
Administrative Analyst III   City Manager 
 
 
 
Reviewed By: 
 
Department Head    PD 

Finance    RB 

City Attorney    TH by email 
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ATTACHMENT B 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Comparison of SCBA Pricing 

 MSA SCOTT 
SCBA Pak $3,704.00 $4,351.90 

Face Mask $181.00 (included in above) 

Air Cylinder $632.00 (included in above) 

Spare Air Cylinder $632.00 $792.60 

   
Price per SCBA Unit $5,149.00 $5,144.50 

   
 

  MSA SCOTT 
1 SCBA 

(58) 
$214,832.00 

MSA GI SCBA 

$252,410.20 
Scott X3 SCBA 

2 Face Mask 
(58) 

$10,498.00 
MSA G1 Mask 

(included in above) 
Scott AV-3000HT Mask 

3 Air Cylinders (45-
Minutes) 

(134) 

$84,688.00 
($632.00/each) 

$60,237.60 
(58 air cylinders included 

above)  
($792.60/each) 

4 Air Cylinders (60-
Minutes) 

(10)  

$8,680.00 
($868.00/each) 

$11,300.00 
($792.60/each) 

5 Batteries $5,250.00 
($210.00/each) (25 

Rechargeable batteries) 

$0 
Scott SCBAs use disposable 
standard batteries.  Based 

upon the replacement 
schedule used by the YCFD, 

the estimated cost of 
replacing these batteries over 
the 15-year life of the SCBAs is 

$15,000. 

 
6 Battery Chargers $2,125.00 

(5) ($425.00/each) 

$0 

7 Quick Connect Adapter 
for Compressor 

$5,500.00 
(20) ($275.00/each) 

$0 

8 G1 APR Adapter $90.00 
(1) 

$0 



 

  MSA SCOTT 
9 Repair Tool Kit $1,995.00 

(1) 

$0 

10 Training Certification $3,400.00 
($850.00/each for 4 
people for a 1 ½ day 

class.  Does not include 
cost for 

overtime/backfill, travel, 
lodging and per diem)  

$0 
No cost for the certification.  
Course is 3 ½-days.  Does not 

include cost for 
overtime/backfill, travel, 

lodging and per diem) 

11 PosiChek Software $799.00 
(MSA software needed 
to transition away from 

Scott) 

$0 
YCFD currently has Scott 

PosiChek software. 

12 RIT Conversion Kit $0 
(Included in Bid) 

$0 

    

 TOTAL BID $337,857.00 $323,947.80 
(Plus estimate of $15,000 for 

purchase of disposable 
batteries over the 15-year life 
of the SCBA, based upon Fire 

Department staff annual 
battery use) 

 Sales Tax $24,494.63 $23,486.22 

 Final Pricing Comparison $362,351.63 
Additional Note:  MSA 
has agreed to provide 
YCFD with five (5) new 

lithium ion 
rechargeable batteries 
every year for 15-years 

for a total of 75 
batteries, to 

supplement the 
batteries to be 

purchased. 

$347,434.02 
(Official Bid Amount – What 

Scott submitted, but we need 
to add in $15,000 for the 
purchase of disposable 

batteries over the 15-year life 
of the equipment, note 

above). 
Our revised estimate for 
purchasing Scott SCBE is  

$362,434.02 
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Comparison of Recent MSA Pricing  

of MSA G1 SCBAs & Related Gear 

Agency Date Purchased Item Unit Price Yuba City 
Fire Price 

Palo Alto, CA 8/14/2017 SCBA $5,270.50 $3,704.00 

  45-minute air 
cylinder 

$799.00 $632.00 

  Mask $228.28 $181.00 

  Charging Station $374.40 $425.00 

  Rechargeable 
Lithium Ion 

battery 

$205.70 $210.00 

     
Linda Fire 
Protection 
District, CA 

2017 SCBA 
(includes mask 
and 45-minute 

air cylinder 

$5,720.00 $3,704.00 
(Yuba City’s 

combined price 
for SCBA, mask 
and 45-minute 

air cylinder 
would be 

$4,517.00) 
  45-minute air 

cylinder 
 $632.00 

  Mask  $181.00 

  Charging Station  $425.00 
  Rechargeable 

Lithium Ion 
battery 

 $210.00 

     
Charter 

Township of 
Canton, MI 

March 28, 2017 SCBA $5,368.75 $3,704.00 

  45-minute air 
cylinder 

$694.45 $632.00 

  Mask $235.70 $181.00 

  Charging Station $366.70 $425.00 
  Rechargeable 

Lithium Ion 
battery 

$201.70 $210.00 



 

 

Agency Date 
Purchased 

Item Unit Price Yuba City  
Fire Price 

Coos Bay, OR July 5, 2017 SCBA $5,965.00 $3,704.00 
  45-minute air 

cylinder 
 $632.00 

  Mask  $181.00 
  Charging Station  $425.00 

  Rechargeable 
Lithium Ion 

battery 

 $210.00 

     

Munster, IN 9/21/2017 SCBA $5,582.00 $3,704.00 
  45-minute air 

cylinder 
 $632.00 

  Mask $275.00 $181.00 
  Charging Station  $425.00 

  Rechargeable 
Lithium Ion 

battery 

 $210.00 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


